
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Monday, 27 February 2023 
 
 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 7 March 2023 
beginning at 

6:15 pm 
in the 

Rooms 11/12/13, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
TO: Councillor Steve Holes (Chair) 
 Councillor Alex Bourne (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor Maud Attrill 
Councillor Steve Beer 
Councillor Leigh Hadaway 
Councillor Wayne Irish 
 

Councillor Adam Manning 
Councillor Tanya Park 
Councillor Bruce Tennent 
Councillor Gin Tidridge 
 

 
Staff Contacts: Catherine Collins, Democratic Services Officer, 

catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Sarah King, Corporate Director, Support Services (CFO), tel 023 
8068 8011 Email: sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
JOANNE CASSAR 

Executive Head of Governance 
 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 

 
This meeting will be recorded and published on the Council's YouTube channel. 
 
Please also be aware that the filming, audio recording, photography and use of social 
media is permitted at meetings open to the public. We ask that you notify the Chair or 
Support Officers in advance so that all attendees can be notified, and reasonable facilities 
can be provided. More information can be found here. 
 
Please note that Councillors will be using tablet devices to access meeting papers. 

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/11419/recording-photography-and-filming-of-ebc-meetings-final.pdf


AGENDA 
 

1.  Apologies  
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 February 2023. 
 

3.   Public Participation  
 
You can submit questions in advance of the meeting to the following email 
address: democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is 
12pm on Monday 6 March 2023. 
 
Please let us know if you wish to attend the meeting. PLEASE DO NOT ATTEND 
IF YOU HAVE ANY COVID-19 SYMPTOMS. 
 

4.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

5.  Update on Staffing Matters 2022 (Pages 7 - 26) 
 

6.  Repair and Renewal Plan (Pages 27 - 34) 
 

7.  Internal Audit Charter 2022/23 (Pages 35 - 50) 
 

8.  Internal Audit Strategic Plan 2023/24 (Pages 51 - 64) 
 

9.  Cabinet Forward Plan (Pages 65 - 68) 
 

10.  A&R Work Programme (Pages 69 - 72) 
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 5 June 2023 at 6:15 pm 

In the Rooms 16 and 17, Eastleigh House, 
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

2

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 21 February 2023  (6:15 pm – 7:00 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Holes (Chair); Councillors Bourne, Attrill, Beer, Hadaway, Irish, 
Manning, Tennent and Tidridge 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Park 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

202. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2023 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

203. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 
 

204. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

205. 2021/22 EXTERNAL AUDIT - VERBAL UPDATE ON PROGRESS AND 
REPORTING ISSUES 
 
EY provided a verbal update to say that work on the external audit was 
progressing well, but was not yet complete – with some areas still needing 
to be finalised. 
 
The audit is highly complex with challenges both for the Eastleigh Borough 
Council finance team, and for EY, but they were working together well. 
 
EY were hopeful that the audit could be completed in time for the Audit 
and Resources Committee meeting on 5 June 2023. 
 
Councillor Tidridge questioned whether the audit detail could be provided 
in an understandable format, which EY assured would be the case. 
 
The Chief Financial Officer agreed that if there as any confusion after the 
report was published, a councillor briefing to further clarify could take 
place. 

3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 

 
206. CAPITAL, INVESTMENT AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

 
The Chief Accountant introduced the Capital, Investment and Treasury 
Management Strategy . 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted the Capital, 
Investment and Treasury Management Strategy. 
 

207. PROPERTY PORTFOLIO UPDATE 
 
The Chief Financial Officer introduced the Property Portfolio Revenue 
Update. 
 
Councillor Holes queried whether all members could be updated on how 
the Council protects itself against void properties. 
 
The Chief Financial Officer stated that some information is in the budget 
report that goes to Cabinet and Council this month, but they could look into 
providing more detail if it was required. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted the Property 
Portfolio Revenue Update, detailing performance relating to the 
Council’s Property (non-housing) Portfolio. 
 

208. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY MONITORING STATEMENT (QTR 3) 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor presented the Internal Audit Quarterly 
Monitoring Statement (Qtr 3 of 2022/23). 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted the Internal Audit 
Quarterly Monitoring Statement (Qtr 3 of 2022/23). 
 

209. CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 
 
The Executive Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer presented the 
Corporate Risk Management Annual Report. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Audit and Resources Committee considered the Annual Risk 
Management Report, and noted the content of the Risk Management 
Framework, Terms of Reference and Risk Appetite Statement. 

4



3 
 

 

 
210. VERBAL UPDATES FROM MEMBERS REPRESENTING 

PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE GROUP (PEG) 
 
(a) Procurement Executive Group (PEG) 
 

Councillor Irish reported that: 
 

 The group met on 7 February. The Procurement and Insurance 
Officer was welcomed back from maternity leave and presented the 
procurement action plan to the group which was noted.  

 The Procurement Performance Indicators were presented by the 
Senior Accountant, and were noted, and the group also reviewed 
the summary of waivers.  

 The Executive Head of Governance provided an update on the 
Procurement Policy following the Cabinet approval to begin further 
consultation with the market. An officer group would be meeting 
shortly to progress. The aim is to formally adopt the Policy by 1 Oct 
23. 

 The work programme was discussed, and it was agreed that 
updates on the Procurement Bill and Dynamic Purchasing System 
would be agenda items for the next meeting on 27 June 2023. 

 
211. CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

 
The Committee considered the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
  
It was AGREED - 
  
That the current Forward Plan be noted. 
 

212. A&R WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Committee considered its current Work Programme. 
  
It was AGREED - 
  
That the Work Programme be noted. 

5



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 7 March 2023  

UPDATE ON STAFFING MATTERS 2022 

Report of the Head of Human Resources 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Audit and Resources Committee considers the contents 
of this report and make recommendations as it feels necessary. 

 

Summary 
 
This report provides a summary of the key workforce data and analysis over the last 12 
months together with an update on the People Strategy.   

Statutory Powers 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 111 / 112 

 

Strategic Implications   

1. This report provides key data, analysis and updates on the Council’s workforce 
and people management practices. The Council recognises the importance of 
recruiting, developing and retaining a skilled and motivated workforce so it can 
continue to deliver good quality services and achieve its aspirations. The Council 
also needs to ensure that it is engaging with its workforce in a way that promotes 
continuous improvement, innovation and commercial success whilst fulfilling its 
statutory obligations. 

Introduction 

2. This report covers the 12-month period to 31 December 2022. It is important to 
mention a number of significant events impacting the Council and its work 
priorities. These include the appointment of James Strachan as the new Chief 
Executive following the retirement of Nick Tustian, the Ukraine invasion in 
February 2022, the increased cost of living arising from the sharp rise in energy 
costs, high inflation including pay inflation and rising interest rates.  The national 
economic picture has contributed to a significantly more difficult financial outlook 
for the Council. These events have meant that a lot of HR capacity was  
allocated in 2022 to support the Leader of Council with the recruitment of a new 
Chief Executive and supporting the organisation in working towards achieving 

7

Agenda Item 5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

our financial savings target due to the global economic impact resulting in 
several organisational restructures. 

3. This report has been enhanced compared to previous years to reflect feedback 
received at last year’s Audit and Resources Committee with additional data and 
graphics included. 

 

Future Ways of Working 

4. A large section of Eastleigh Borough Councils (EBC) workforce has continued to 
work in a hybrid manner since the pandemic (March 2020), with many largely 
home-based, whilst our customer-facing front line services have continued to 
attend the workplace daily. As part of a six-month trial that commenced in June 
2022, office staff worked a minimum of one day each week at a work location 
other than their home. Predominantly this was from Eastleigh House or other 
EBC workplace.  

5. For most office staff, Eastleigh House is their base but there is flexibility to work 
elsewhere if this satisfies the business need. The aim of the trial was to improve 
collaboration whilst embracing the benefits of hybrid working and flexibility. The 
project team has been regularly reviewing the arrangements with various staff 
surveys and establishing how the proposed future ways of working influence the 
Council’s effectiveness in delivering all corporate priorities. For example, in 
relation to the Green Borough theme, decisions can have a direct impact upon 
climate and environmental change. With more staff working from home, 
congestion and the associated pollution caused by staff travelling by car would 
reduce. Further, this improves the overall environment and air quality and is a 
consideration for any future working patterns. This project also seeks to help with 
the Prosperous Place corporate theme by reinvigorating town and local centres 
by permitting staff to use coffee shops and other facilities to conduct their work 
where appropriate. 

6. The trial ended in December 2022. An online survey seeking staff views on the 
hybrid working model was undertaken. 201 staff responded to the survey with the 
highest proportion coming from Customer Care Executive area. In summary the 
results of the survey were as follows: 

 52% of staff had reported working from a work location one day per week  

 47% of staff reported working from a work location for between 2 to 5 days 
per week 

 Wednesday was the most popular day staff attended a work location other 
than their home, followed by Tuesday with Friday being the least popular 

 Colleagues attended on a given day due to other colleagues being present in 
the workplace and this was driven by the need to attend specific meetings or 
use equipment 

 Key benefits of working from a work location were the ability to share ideas 
with colleagues and social interaction 

8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Some negatives of working from the office were highlighted including the cost 
of commuting and reduced productivity 

 87% of staff responded positively to the suggestion of continuing to work in a 
hybrid way 

 Positives of working from home were increased focus, increased flexibility 
and greater work life balance but colleagues also mentioned that it can be 
isolating, decreases opportunities to learn and makes building personal 
relationships more challenging. 

7. In summary, it is clear that staff greatly value the opportunity to split their work 
between home and the workplace where business needs allow highlighting a 
range of benefits in terms of efficiency, flexibility and wellbeing. However, the 
advantages of working together in a team in the office with opportunities to 
collaborate, seek support and advice are also valued. 

8. Based on the feedback it was agreed office staff will be required to work from an 
EBC workplace a minimum of one day each week and offer the flexibility to work 
from home or other suitable alternative location for up to four days a week, 
subject to business need effective from 1 April 2023. As a result, the Hybrid 
Policy was redrafted and agreed with the Unions, with no requirement to change 
contracts of employment. Working with the Equalities Focus Group the project 
team have also updated the equalities impact assessment. In addition, the 
following set of proposals were also agreed and will be implemented where 
possible by 1 April 2023: 

 The first floor at Eastleigh House (not including the meeting rooms) will be 
closed to Council staff with the aim of renting to external organisations, along 
with the vacant space on the fourth floor 

 The spacing between workstations will be reduced to pre-Covid levels, with 
more IT equipment installed allowing colleagues to work more collaboratively 

 A social committee will be launched to further establish the #TeamEBC 
social culture. 

Key Workforce Data  

9. Total number of staff as at 31 December 2022 

 Total head count:     543 (562 Dec 2021)  

 Fixed term headcount:    38 (57 Dec 2021) 

 Permanent full time equivalent (FTE):  489.98 (507.03 Dec 2021)  

 Casual employees    70 (64 Dec 2021) 

 

10. There has been a slight reduction in our total headcount in the past year.  There 
is no specific area where this is accounted for and it is spread across a number 

9



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

of areas including Environment, Planning & Economy Organisational 
Development and Customer Care. 

11. There has also been a reduction in fixed term contract posts due to the need to 
make savings. This has been the first approach in our key considerations in 
assisting towards meeting our financial savings target.   

12. There has been a slight increase in the use of casual staff however.  It is 
important to note that the majority of the casual employees engaged by the 
Council work at The Point/Berry Theatres and Itchen Valley Country Park 
Woodland Café. Due to the seasonal nature of these venues, there will continue 
to be some requirement to use casual staff to manage peaks and troughs in 
visitor numbers throughout the year.  

Turnover 

13. Employee turnover refers to the percentage of employees who leave the 
organisation and are replaced by new employees.  Whilst some turnover is 
healthy, if turnover is too high there is an increased adverse impact on costs, 
stability, training requirements, knowledge and management time. 
 

Overall Turnover (1 Jan 2022 – 31 December 2022)  

Voluntary 14.9% 

Voluntary Over two years’ service 8.5% 

Involuntary 2.2% 

 

14. The voluntary turnover rate for those who have resigned was 14.9% in 2022 
compared to 14.8% in 2021. If involuntary leavers are included, this rate is 
17.1%. Involuntary leavers refers to those who have left for reasons such as 
redundancy, end of fixed term contract or by dismissal for any reason. The 
majority of voluntary turnover is amongst staff with over two years’ service. The 
average years of service for voluntary leavers was seven years and involuntary 
was nine years. 

15. Turnover rates in the UK historically average around 15%. The latest data from 
Xpert HR which is based on data from a survey taken in 2022 showed around 
one in six employees (16.4%) nationally resigned from their roles in 2022. This is 
a noticeable increase from the 9.6% voluntary resignation rate for 2021. The total 
labour turnover rate was 22.5% in 2022, again higher than the 14.6% recorded in 
2021. 

16. In comparison, the average public sector turnover rate is 16.2% according to 
XpertHR/Survey analysis (published 1 February 2023). 

17. The voluntary resignation rate and the total labour turnover rate have increased 
markedly over the past few years, something not unexpected given the effects of 

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

the pandemic and then the tight labour market making it an employees' market 
and organisations including Eastleigh Borough Council are still seeing the 
rippling effects of “The Great Resignation” (also known as “the big quit”). This is 
an economic trend that began in early 2021 and describes the phenomenon 
where record numbers of employees leave their jobs having re-evaluated their 
careers.  Organisations are faced with having to navigate the ripple effects of the 
pandemic and re-evaluate options to retain talent. The job market is 
exceptionally buoyant and employers are seeing the strain of high volumes of 
vacancies and supply of resources not meeting demand. Eastleigh is not alone in 
finding it increasingly difficult to recruit in some service areas and our turnover 
rates have remained similar to last year. In the most recent LGA workforce 
survey (2022), 94% of councils stated that they were having difficulties with 
recruitment and retention.  

18. The Office for National Statistics (ONS) reported that in August to October 2022, 
the estimated number of vacancies fell by 46,000 on the quarter to 1,225,000. 
Despite four consecutive quarterly falls, the number of vacancies remain at 
historically high levels. 

19. The Chartered Institute of Personal and Development (CIPD- Labour Market 
Outlook 2022) also found that recruitment struggles persist - over half of 
employers have hard-to-fill vacancies and a third anticipate significant problems 
in filling roles. Skill shortage vacancies are a particular problem and currently 
outnumber labour shortages. And those with degree-level or equivalent 
qualifications are highest in demand. Demonstrating an increased competition for 
recruiting workforce and retaining staff. 

20. The graph below shows our turnover broken down by Executive area in 2022 
which confirms the highest turnover is within Environment. Environmental Health 
practitioners have played a major role during the course of the pandemic to 
protect people’s health, support businesses and safeguard communities. The 
Chartered Institute of Environmental Health has confirmed the profession faces a 
number of existential challenges due to a lack of resources within teams, 
tightening budgets and difficulties with recruitment of experienced and qualified 
practitioners. Their 2021 survey found that 9 out of 10 local authorities were 
using agency staff because of shortages in resources or delays in recruitment. 
This enforces the patterns and trends the council is facing with the difficulty in 
retaining and recruiting for such specialist posts.  

       

0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%
40.0%

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f 

tu
rn

o
ve

r 

Turnover - 1 January 2022 - 31 December 2022 

Voluntary Voluntary 2+ years’ service Involuntary

11



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Turnover statistics (1 Jan 2022 – 31 December 2022) by Executive Area 

 Headcount Voluntary Voluntary 2+ 
years’ service 

Involuntary 

Assets 64 18.8% 9.4% 0.0% 

Corporate 22 9.1% 9.1% 0.0% 

Customer Care 112 14.3% 9.8% 1.8% 

Environment 15 33.3% 13.3% 6.7% 

Finance and Housing 20 5.0% 5.0% 0.0% 

Governance 21 9.5% 9.5% 0.0% 

Health and Wellbeing 63 17.5% 7.9% 6.3% 

Neighbourhood Services 157 10.2% 7.0% 1.9% 

Organisational Development 42 21.4% 9.5% 2.4% 

Planning and Economy 27 25.9% 7.4% 3.7% 

Leavers by Reason 

21. For 2022, there were a total of 81 leavers across the Council, compared to 83 
leavers in 2021.  Leavers information is shown within the chart below: 

 
 

Leaver by reason  - voluntary 
01/01/2022- 31/12/2022 

Number 

Career Opportunities 37 

Change of career path 12 

Personal 14 

Retirement 9 

Less Stress or Travel 5 

Other 4 

Total 81 

 

Leaver by reason - voluntary (1 Jan 22- 31 Dec 22) 

Career Opportunities Change of career path Personal Retirement Less Stress or Travel Other

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

22. The main reason for leaving was due to career opportunities which amounted to 

37 leavers compared to 31 in 2021. This ties in with the ONS results regarding 

the high increase in job vacancies within the market.  

 
23. The second prime reason for leaving was for personal reasons where there were 

14 leavers compared to 16 in 2021. Interestingly the top three reasons for 
leaving in 2022 are the same as 2021 which are career opportunities, personal 
reasons and change of career path.  

Executive Area No left due to 
career 

opportunities 

% of leavers who left due 
to career opportunities 

Assets 9 75% 

Corporate 1 50% 

Customer Care 4 22% 

Environment 4 67% 

Finance and Housing 0 0% 

Governance 2 100% 

Health and Wellbeing 4 27% 

Neighbourhood Services 3 16% 

Organisational Development 5 50% 

Planning and Economy 5 63% 

Total 37 46% 

 

24. The above table shows the number of employees who left due to career 
opportunities. The two executive areas with the highest percentage of leavers 
due to career opportunities was in Assets and Governance. Most of the leavers 
within these areas were senior officers and in specialist posts. With it being an 
employer’s market and only limited career progression internally due to the 
senior nature of their posts we would expect to lose some skilled staff.  

25. The Council continues to work to understand the reasons for staff leaving, 
through our exit interview and questionnaire process. This is not a mandatory 
process, although the majority of staff are willing to voluntarily engage through 
either completing a questionnaire and/or attending an interview with a member of 
the HR team. These interviews and questionnaires give us a valuable insight into 
the reasons for leaving as well as gauging general satisfaction with Eastleigh 
Borough Council as an employer. Their feedback is reviewed and considered 
especially by HR and helps us to formulate and revise our HR policies and 
practices. 

26. The internal apprenticeship programme and the corporate professional 
qualification initiative (details below) will help to address our aim to “grow our 
own” talent and offer career development opportunities within the Council.   

27. Staff retention is regularly monitored and reported on as a key performance 
indicator as part of the Corporate Performance framework. 

13



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Workforce Profile as of December 2022 

28. Gender profile (all employees)  

Female = 50% (same as in 2021) 

Male = 50% (same as in 2021) 

 

 
29. The gender split across the Council is very well balanced as it has been in 

previous years.  There is a higher percentage of males compared to females in 
some of the lower paid roles within the Council, largely due to the demographic 
within Neighbourhood Services (ie. Waste and StreetScene) operational teams.   

30. The Council produces an annual Gender Pay Gap Report for submission to the 
Government which is posted on the Council’s website.  The Council has 
historically shown a positive gender pay gap in favour of female staff which is 
further evidence of the Council’s commitment to equality, fairness and inclusion. 

31. Age profile  

25 and under  = 6% 

26 to 30  = 8% 

31 to 40  = 24% 

41 to 50  = 24% 

51 to 55 = 11% 

56 to 60  = 13% 

61 to 65  = 11% 

65 plus = 2% 

 

Gender profile for all employees 

Female Male

14



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

 

32. Further detailed analysis confirms  that the Council has 26% of its workforce 
aged 56 and over. As part of the People Strategy this matter will be considered in 
terms of creating succession planning strategies. 

33. Ethnicity Profile (where the data is recorded) 

1.8 % - Employees from an ethnic minority background (2.2% in 2021) 

The table below shows the ethnicity breakdown for Council employees (where 
this information is recorded): 

 

 Overall 

White British 58.7% 

No data 36.1% 

White Other 1.8% 

White Irish 0.2% 

Prefer not to say 1.3% 

Asian British Bangladeshi 0.2% 

Asian British Indian 0.7% 

Mixed Other 0.2% 

Black British African 0.2% 

Black British Caribbean 0.2% 

Mixed White & Black 
Caribbean 

0.2% 

Other Ethnic Group 0.2% 
 

 
34. Employees are encouraged to supply their ethnicity data and are able to enter 

this information themselves via their personal HR/payroll profile however 36% of 
employees have decided not to report this data. HR play an active role in the 
Council’s Equalities Focus Group championing equality and diversity and 
seeking initiatives to attract, support and retain staff from various backgrounds.  

Age profile overall 

25 and under

26 to 30

31 to 40

41 to 50

51 to 55

56 to 60

61 to 65

65 plus

15



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

35. Disability Profile (where the data is recorded)  
4% Employees with a disability  (4% in 2021) 
 

36. The ratio of employees either with a disability, or who have recorded themselves 
as being from an ethnic minority background within our workforce remains low. 
The exercise undertaken in 2021 encouraged employees to report and record 
this data on their personal records and will continue to work to encourage higher 
reporting of this data.   

37. In addition, to improve consideration of equalities in service, project planning and 
for key decisions, HR has been working closely with the Equalities Focus Group 
and further staff training has been delivered to support Equalities Impact 
Assessments, Unconsciousness and Conscious bias training, reviewed 
questioning techniques for interviews and overall assisted with championing 
equalities across the organisation.  

38. The Council is committed to ensuring our recruitment and employment practices 
are fair and inclusive.  HR has delivered recruitment training to managers 
outlining key processes and changes to our recruitment module within our 
HR/Payroll system and obligations during the recruitment process in terms of 
equality and diversity.  

39. The Council has achieved ‘Disability Confident’ accreditation and continues to 
offer a guaranteed interview to candidates with a disability who meet the 
minimum essential criteria for any role that they apply for.  

40. The Council is also continuing to support the publication “Living with Disability” 
through taking out an advert. The magazine informs disabled people, their 
families and friends on how to access available products and opportunities and 
helps to raise our profile as a Disability Confident employer to its readership. 
Hybrid working practices will also help with attracting a more diverse workforce. 

Sickness Absence Data 

41. The following tables shows the percentage of available working days lost due to 
sickness for the past seven years: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Year % of days lost due to 

sickness EBC 

2015 3.8% 

2016  3.0% 

2017  3.5% 

2018 4.2% 

2019 2.9% 

2020 3.3% 

2021 3.4% 

2022 4.0% 

16



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

42. Further analysis shows that the highest sickness levels are within 
Neighbourhood Services. Neighbourhood Services, sickness rates are 
traditionally higher when compared to the rest of the Council due to the high 
numbers of employees in the area and the very physical nature of the work 
involved in Waste and StreetScene in particular.  

43. All sickness absences are managed through the Council’s Absence and 
Wellbeing Policy and managers are supported by HR with individual cases. The 
Council takes a pro-active approach to managing absence through early 
engagement with employees who are absent for any reason and using 
occupational health where appropriate to seek medical advice on the capabilities 
of employees to return to work. Where there is a real possibility of an earlier 
return to work through the use of physiotherapy, the Council will consider funding 
such treatment to support an earlier return.  This often reduces the time that an 
employee is off work due to injury considerably when compared to waiting times 
for equivalent physiotherapy treatments available through the NHS.  

44. Sickness absence data is a key indicator of organisational performance and 
needs to be well managed.  It is reported on regularly to the Executive Team and 
senior management via HR.  

 

45. The top three reasons stated for absence during 2022 were colds/flu, stress and 
Musculo skeletal which is the same as previous years. The higher incidence of 
colds/flu in 2022 can be explained in part due to symptoms being similar to covid, 
more social interaction following the removal of restrictions and the reduction of 
PCR tests being freely available.  

 
46. Long term absences accounted for 49% of absences in the Council. 

 

17



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

 

47. The Council continued to support employees through the pandemic in 2022 
through the production of monthly health and wellbeing bulletins and raising the 
awareness of the employee assistance programme.   

HR Casework 

48. The following table shows the number of formal cases being managed with 
support from HR for the past three years: 

 2020 2021 2022 

Formal Absence Management Cases 19 27 36 

Formal Disciplinary Hearings 3 3 3 

Formal Grievance Hearing 1 0 0 

Formal Performance Management Cases 3 2 2 

Dismissals on probation 3 1 0 

 
49. It is pleasing to note that there were no formal grievances during 2022. 

Employee issues have been resolved informally with close working between HR, 
Managers and the trade unions.  

50. HR polices are located on the Staff Hub so that staff and Managers have easy 
access. The HR team continues to provide support to Managers in handling any 
cases and have delivered a suite of HR related training to managers covering 
key areas such as disciplinary, grievance, sickness, performance management, 
recruitment etc.   

51. As a result of the new ways of working, there were a number of revisions and 
additions to EBC’s suite of HR policies and procedures, to reflect both changes 
in legislation and amendments to working practices as a result of remote working 
which included a new Hybrid Working Policy. In conjunction with the trade unions 
the Council also launched a Domestic Abuse Policy aimed at ensuring that 
employees who may be experiencing domestic abuse feel able to raise it within 

18



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

the workplace and are aware of the support available - and for line managers 
and colleagues to feel confident in reporting and providing support. 

Learning and Development  

52. A new Professional Qualifications Policy was launched in the last quarter of 2022 
to further demonstrate EBC’s commitment to developing its workforce through 
qualifications-based training moving into 2023. The aim of this policy is to 
encourage teams within the Council to consider qualifying their teams through 
the apprentice levy first, to assist us in meeting our public sector obligations, but 
also to have an identified pot of funds for qualifications which cannot be funded 
through the levy. This dedicated pot ensures that there is funding available to be 
requested by all members of Team EBC and that there is funding set aside for 
the qualification based training as well as the skills based training that is also 
required. The Policy shows a clear process for those interested in developing 
themselves further and ensures that the opportunity to upskill is to be led by the 
employee and is not reserved for certain teams or staff and is open to all. 
 

53. Corporate training was not as extensive in the early part of 2022 as in previous 
years due to a combination of reasons such as embedding of the new Executive 
structure and the freeze on corporate spending later on in the year due to the 
financial pressures EBC is facing. Additionally gathering training requirements 
from each executive area was a complicated process and this meant budgetary 
plans were not finalised until later in the year. The aim is to roll out corporate 
training and department level training in the early part of 2023 to ensure that the 
development is available within the financial year. At the time of writing there is a 
circa of £40,000 left within the budget and are aiming to utilise this over the 
coming months.  
 

54. Due to the pandemic, our partnership working with the Job Centre Plus had 
ceased as the Council was not able to commit to placements due to the ongoing 
restrictions in place. In 2022, this partnership has been revisited and a 
commitment has been made to providing high quality and meaningful placements 
to our residents who have been out of work and are keen to build experience 
back into their CVs. 

 
55. The Council has enrolled five drivers onto HGV bootcamp training at a 

significantly reduced rate to help combat the skills shortage in this area and 
competitive rates of pay. These drivers are likely to be qualified in early to mid-
2023 and will be ready to act as relief drivers at the depot to provide resilience 
and be available to step into a driving job when one becomes vacant.  
 

56. In 2022, the Council was offered the chance to bid to be involved in an ACAS 
funded research project around discipline and grievance at work linked to conflict 
styles of managers and the Councl was successful in our bid to be involved. The 
managers who are taking part will be involved in a free of charge workshop run 
by Professor Richard Saundry of the University of Westminster and will have 
access to a management training toolkit online for 12 months. This will be a 
chance for managers to share their views with others and discuss challenges 
they face with Richard who is one of the UK’s leading experts in this field. 
 

19



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

57. During May, the Council welcomed our new Chief Executive, James Strachan, 
into the organisation and Learning and Development worked closely with James, 
Nick Tustian and the PA’s to structure and organise his induction into the 
Council, ensuring that he met with all that he needed to and that he was involved 
in relevant meetings which would enhance James’ first few months. 
 

58. The EBCLearn platform has continued to enable the team to provide access to 
training and development learning as well as supportive learning materials on 
health and wellbeing and other associated topics, for example time management, 
personal resilience, stress management. The system enables us to store training 
records in one place and also provides EBC with significantly improved reporting 
tools in relation to learning and development. For example, HR is able to identify 
the numbers of employees who have accessed a particular training module and 
Managers can access a “dashboard” relating to the training that their own team 
has completed/not completed. HR is therefore able to identify and track 
employees’ completion of mandatory training. The system has also been used to 
provide access to interview support which enables those who are having to 
reinterview for their role as part of the restructure to prepare for this task. 

Apprenticeships 

59. During 2022, seven new apprenticeships began in the Council, as follows: 

 Two Level 6 Chartered Surveyor Apprenticeships 

 One Level 2 Countryside Worker Apprenticeship 

 Two Level 3 Creative Venue Technician Apprenticeship 

 One Level 7 Accountancy Professional Apprenticeship 

 One Level 6 Digital and Technology Solutions Professional Apprenticeship 

60. Plans are already in place for two additional apprenticeships to commence in 
early 2023 with another two to be advertised. 

61. HR continues to work with Managers to encourage them to consider recruiting an 
apprentice for lower salary banded roles and in entry-level technical roles. If a 
qualification can be funded through the apprentice levy, we will not fund this 
through the training budget.  

20



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Work Experience, Careers Outreach  

62. Over the past year, our levels of work experience have increased back to pre-
covid levels, and there already are  a number of confirmed placements across 
various service areas for 2023. The Council has attended careers events at 
various local schools and colleges such as Crestwood, Wyvern, Wildern and 
Eastleigh College and continue to represent Eastleigh Borough Council at 
providers within our borough and just outside, including Winchester and 
Southampton. These events include mock interview workshops, careers events 
during school time and in evenings for parents to attend and presentations. 

63. The Council has provided a supported internship within the Facilities team in 
2022 and will continue to provide these where operationally possible. 

 

People Strategy Update 

64. The People Strategy is recognised as a Council ambition and is also part of the 
Organisational Action Plan. Its vision is for the Council to have a skilled, high 
performing workforce in accordance with its values of fairness, ambition and 
empowerment. The Council’s current People Strategy 2022-2024 is based on 
three key principles: 

 Reward  

 Recruit  

 Retain 
 

65. The People Strategy details the activities that aim to ensure the Council has the 

right people with the right skills, attitude, motivation and flexibility to deliver 

services and objectives, it focuses on the following key areas: 

 Pay and Reward;  

 Recruitment and Retention;  

 Performance Management;  

 Learning & Development;  
 

66. Understandably progress on achieving some of the strategic aims within the 
People Strategy was hindered due to other pressing priorities such at the 
recruitment of a new Chief Executive, and the global economic impact having a 
significant impact on the Council’s financial outlook resulting in the need to 
support and deliver several organisational restructures.   

67. Nevertheless, despite it being a very busy period, the People Strategy project 
team have continued to work together to consider the above strands of the 
People Strategy with a view to making Eastleigh Borough Council an employer of 
choice and have implemented and/or reviewed the following: 

 Simplified the EBC application form making this a less laborious process for 
applicants to apply and updated the EBC advert template to make the role 
more attractive. Further work is due to be done in collaboration with the 
communications team on our employer branding 

 Reviewed interview questions and process for less specialist posts 

21



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Worked with the communications team on recruitment landing pages including 
the Chief Executive video 

 Trialled the free advertising Indeed platform and monitored the success of its 
use 

 Delivered hybrid working training to managers 

 Carried out a performance survey of managers which concluded that 
performance was being managed in a hybrid way and highlighted some 
improvements to consider 

 Considered the concept of “stay meetings” (development or support) and 
value 

 Review of non-pecuniary benefits and developed a staff benefits booklet to 
promote during recruitment 

 Performed internal benchmarking to determine how EBC sits in the 
employment market 

 The project team has also made preparations for a range of actions which can 
be progressed at the correct time. Some have a cost implication and so the 
current climate has not allowed for implementation. These include a golden 
hello, a referral scheme, a volunteering policy, buying and selling of annual 
leave, long-service awards and changes to our salary sacrifice schemes. 
 

68. Part of the main focus has been improving the recruitment process. Tweaks have 
been made to the recruitment process with the emphasis of managers being 
more active during recruitment as historic methods were not appropriate due to 
the market buoyancy. Training and recruitment guidance was developed and 
delivered to managers to aid this and embed the changes. Equally a number of 
successful recruitment campaigns were organised to fill hard to recruit/specialists 
posts.  

 
69. Retention has also been a key focus and amendments will be made to our pay 

framework and a more structured approach to progression is being considered. 
With the support of South East Employers internal and external benchmarking 
was completed during the year and this has helped with re-banding  some roles 
that have proved difficult to recruit to, and has also highlighted which areas and 
levels the Council is paying below, about right or above market rates. All of this 
information has informed the current re-structures and will feed into the Pay, 
Progression and Performance review in 2023 which is being led by the Chief 
Executive and is also aligned to the People Strategy.   

Pay and reward 

70. Each year, employees receive a nationally-agreed “cost of living” increase that is 
set nationally and following that the local pay award was agreed that is based on 
individual employee performance. The “cost of living” increase for 2022 was 
agreed in November 2022 which included an increase of £1,925 for Band 2 to 
Band 16 and an increase of one day in annual leave for all staff from 1 April 
2023. This was backdated and paid swiftly in the same month.  

71. Due to the substantial pay agreement which had not been anticipated or 
budgeted due to rapid changes over the summer in the national and global 

22



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

economy and the need for the Council to revise its medium-term financial plan, 
the decision was taken not to pay our local pay award.  

72. The Council continues to demonstrate its commitment to the Living Wage by 
increasing payments to £9.90 per hour from April 2022 for Band 1 employees. 
This supports our ongoing commitment towards our accreditation as a Living 
Wage Employer.  

Recruitment and Retention 

73. The Council has continued to recruit in a mixture of methods such as face to face 
and via teams during 2022.  
 

74. During 2022, the Head of HR supported the Leader of the Council with the 
recruitment of a new Chief Executive with the involvement of an external agency. 
An offer was successfully made to the successful candidate, James Strachan 
within two months of commencing the recruitment process and developed a 
robust and detailed induction programme when he joined in May 2022.  

75. In late 2022 due to the global economic situation a further restructure 
commenced covering the Corporate Leadership Board and recently formed 
Executive team resulting in three redundancies, The new structure effective from 
1 April 2023 comprises a Chief Executive, two Corporate Directors and seven 
Service Directors. The focus in 2023 will be embedding the new structure and 
supporting a comprehensive leadership development programme and ensuring 
the subsequent restructures for each executive area are aligned and embedded 
into the new leadership structure.  

Performance Management 

76. The Council introduced a revised People Performance framework in November 
2018 based on the principles that all staff should have regular performance, 
wellbeing and development discussions. Within this, employees should have a 
clear work programme and SMART objectives in place so that discussions on 
priorities, issues and problems can also take place on a structured basis.  The 
framework also ensures that every employee plays an active part in their own 
performance management.  A fundamental part of the performance process is 
regular 1:1 meetings between Managers and employees.  
 

77. Further consideration will be given to the current performance management 
process during 2023 to ensure that it remains relevant in the climate in which the 
Council now operates and against the background of the market challenges 
being faced. Part of this review will include the consideration of a technological 
solution to performance management as our current process is very paper-based 
with a revised/light-touch process and framework for managers to follow as the 
objective is to revive a performance culture and regular discussions with 
wellbeing an important factor. Links will also be made to paying a local pay 
award should budgets allow however as part of the People Performance 
framework there are several ways managers and staff can be recognised such 
as: 

23



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Thank You Cards - These cards were introduced in 2019 and continued to be 
used across the Executive Areas. They continue to receive positive feedback 
and have been a more tangible way of saying “thank you” to employees as the 
majority are working remotely from colleagues and customers. 

 Shopping Vouchers - Managers can award £20 shopping vouchers to 
distribute to their staff as they deem appropriate to recognise individual staff 
contributions.   The vouchers are a way to give a small but tangible token of 
recognition which supports the Council’s commitments to individual 
contributions. Feedback to date is very positive and staff have stated that they 
really appreciate the quick and simple recognition from their manager. 

 Honorarium – ability to award staff with a one off payment for an exceptional 
piece of work going above and beyond the requirements of their role 

 Staff Awards – due to the current climate it was agreed that the staff awards 
based on the four key themes within our Way We Work framework (think 
customer, think colleague, think different, take pride) and a #TeamEBC award 
for the teams will be moved to the Summer 2023 allowing an opportunity to 
celebrate successes in an appropriate setting and time.  

Employee Wellbeing  

78. The Council’s Wellbeing monthly bulletins (bringing together all wellbeing news 
and information into one place for easy access) are now an established regular 
monthly communication to all staff. The Council’s network of internal mental 
health champions continues to meet on a 6-weekly basis to share news and 
information on wellbeing topics and the champions are available for confidential 
conversations with employees about their mental health.  The Council has 
recruited a few additional mental health champions and they have actively set up 
regular drop-in sessions for staff due to the changes within the organisation and 
global economic crisis.   
 

79. In late 2022 the team worked closely with our Employee Assistance Programme 
and launched a mobile app where staff can access all of the information covering 
a diverse range of topics from mental health, financial planning, legal advice, 
career planning and relationship advice. Employees are also able to now chat 
with the team via a live chat function in the app and like the phone service this is 
confidential and free of charge for staff. The Mental Health Champions continue 
to signpost employees to the programme with full knowledge of the wide variety 
of assistance that it can provide.  

80. During Mental Health Week in May 2022, daily mental health bulletins were 
issued to staff on the subject of loneliness with tips, hints and guidance on 
mental health.  

Payroll 

81. The NJC pay award for April 2022 was agreed on 1 November 2022 and due to 
the increase in cost of living, to support staff as soon as practicable payroll 
worked hard to make the necessary changes in the system and back pay all staff 
in a very tight turnaround on 15 November 2022.  

24



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

82. The Council also backdated the Councillors’ allowances swiftly to reflect revised 
allowance and this was paid in December 2022. 

83. At the time of writing this report, a major upgrade is being installed to the Payroll 
system which has required significant user acceptance testing and support for its 
implementation. This has all been achieved along with three other updates 
throughout the year in addition to the normal monthly payroll processes. 

Union collaboration 

85 The Council is keen to support trade union membership and there is recognised 
facility time for union representatives.   Throughout 2022, HR worked closely and 
collaboratively with the unions to deal with any urgent matters raised by staff. 
This enabled issues to be resolved quickly and efficiently without the need to 
recourse to more formal methods of resolution. More formal matters continue to 
be raised through the Council’s Joint Consultative Committee which includes 
members of Corporate Leadership Board, HR and the various trade unions. 

Financial Implications 

86 Staff costs represent our largest revenue expense so it is essential the People 
and Reward strategies support the delivery of our corporate objectives in the 
most efficient way. However, there are no specific costs associated with this 
report. 

Risk Assessment 

87 There are no specific risks associated with this report. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

88 The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the Council need to 
ensure that all its people management practices adhere to the Equality Act and 
actively support a tolerant and inclusive working environment.  It needs to ensure 
it has robust policies and practices in place to eliminate discrimination, advance 
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different people.    A full 
Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out for the purposes of 
this report because while there are some equalities impacts, it is not 
proportionate to carry out a full EIA. 
 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

89 There are no specific climate change or environmental implications from this 
report. 

Conclusion 

90 In common with most organisations there are challenges in recruitment and 
retention across the Council. The People Strategy team has been referenced in 
this report repeatedly and that highlights its importance to the Council especially 
in the forthcoming year. 
 

91 The development of our future ways of working is also key and this will influence 
the delivery of the Council’s priorities. It is important the Council continues to 

25



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

build on this progress and continues to support and promote a productive, 
inclusive, supportive and enjoyable work environment. 

SUKHI AUJLA 
HEAD OF HR 

 
Date: 27 February 2023 
Contact Officer: Sukhi Aujla – Head of HR 
Tel No: 02380 686570 
e-mail: sukhi.aujla@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published 
works or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None  

 

26



 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

TUESDAY, 7TH MARCH  2023 

REPAIR AND RENEWAL PLAN 2019/20 - 2023/24  

UPDATE MARCH 2023 

Report of the Lead Building Surveyor (Asset Management)  

 

Recommendation: 

It is recommended that Audit and Resources Committee notes the progress against 
the Repair and Renewal Plan 2019/20 - 2023/24. 

 

 

Summary 
 
The Council currently own over 1,000 assets predominantly located within the 
Borough. It includes commercial property, leisure facilities, depots, car parks, 
public conveniences and assets leased to community organisations. 

Our commercial investment portfolio generates a rental income of £16m per year for 2021-
22 with a book value of circa £220 million (as at 31st March 2019).  

Focus for Scrutiny 

The Repair and Renewal Plan is developed to span 2019/20 – 2023/24 to enable the 
Council’s operational and commercial buildings to be maintained in a good state of repair. 
This report details the progress against the approved plan. 

Statutory Powers 
 
* Local Government Act 1972, Sections 111 and 151 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. This report provides a view on progress of the Repair’s and Renewal (R&R) 
Plan which has been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, recent economic 
events and the war in Ukraine. These events have contributed to high inflation, 
various access restrictions, staff absence and limited contractor resource 
availability. These issues have been reported through the Strategic Risk 
Management Group (SRMG) in June/December 2021 and November 2022. It 

27

Agenda Item 6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

has also been communicated to all Councillors through briefings and 
publications.  

2. Appendix 1 provides the latest estimate for works and activities for 2023- 
2024, post COVID These works do not include future large-scale capital 
investments or disposals as this forms part of future and on-going work to 
determine the strategic direction of the Council’s property portfolio.  

3. The Repair and Renewal Plan allows the Council to continue to have a 
proactive and commercial approach to its property portfolio, actively 
supporting the corporate objectives of maintaining a sustainable environment 
and providing infrastructure to support a prosperous community during 
challenging times. 

Introduction 

4. The Council currently own over 1,000 assets predominantly located 
within the Borough. It includes commercial property, leisure facilities, 
depots, car parks, public conveniences and assets leased to 
community organisations. 

5. The Repair and Renewal Plan for 2019-24 was brought to this Committee for 
review in October 2019. Of the original £4m budget planned for 2019/20 to 
2022/23, 68% has now been spent or committed. Delays have been 
experienced, primarily due to the COVID-19 pandemic, and schemes have 
been deferred into future years dependent on priority or are awaiting strategic 
decisions by the Council.  

  

6. Operational Properties 

 The operational portfolio of property includes the following significant 
assets: 

 Itchen Valley and Lakeside Country Parks 

 Eastleigh House 

 The Point 

 Operational depots in Hedge End and Dutton Lane 

7. A number of these buildings require some planned investment to replace 
infrastructure and provide necessary compliance with latest standards  

8. The latest estimate for these works is some £870,000 or 22% of the five-year 
R & R Plan budget. This report quantifies the spend on operational properties 
over the remaining year and it is intended that this report will continue to be 
provided annually. A new five-year plan will be prepared during the next 

28



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

financial year and presented alongside the scheduled R & R update in early 
2024.  

9. Any new buildings acquired will be added to the asset list with any necessary 
expenditure upon purchase being covered within the initial business case. 

Commercial Properties 

10. The commercial portfolio includes industrial and retail parks, hotels, office 
blocks and leisure facilities such as:  

 The Ageas Bowl 

 Hilton Hotel 

 David Lloyd Centre 

 Black Horse House 

 Hampshire House 

 Omega House 

 Wessex House 

 Link 1 and 2 

11. Some of these assets require investment to replace infrastructure and ensure 
future compliance. The current R & R plan has £700,000 of budget committed 
to the investment portfolio. Some of these costs can be recovered from 
tenants with increase rental income  

12. The Property Management Team have developed a plan of works and a 
delivery strategy in consultation with Finance. An updated schedule is 
provided within Appendix 1 to this update.  

13. The scope of works required are still under review for a number of these sites 
including The Depot and Wessex House- which will determine likely budget 
spend.  

Dilapidations 

14. Of the 300 commercial properties that the Council owns, some 25% of these 
have lease obligations whereby the tenants is response for the full repair and 
reinstatement costs. Where the Council is seeking to appoint new tenants then 
the intention is to ensure that these tenants have this same obligation on 
dilapidations reducing the risk of dilapidation costs to the Council  

15. In the event that a tenant becomes insolvent or stops trading the Council may 
be expose to the risk and costs of undertaking dilapidations costs before that 

29



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

unit can be relet. Currently no financial provisions have been made against 
any such risk, other than the use of the wider property reserves.  

16. Pro-active inspections of tenanted buildings are prioritised to ensure tenants 
are complying with their maintenance and repairing obligations when they are 
in occupation, which will reduce the risk of dilapidation costs falling to the 
Council upon lease expiry.  

Financial Implications 

17. The updated capital cost of the proposed Repair and Renewal Plan is 
summarised in the table 1  

18. Expenditure is forecasted to remain high in 2023/24 and onwards as delayed 
spend due to the impact of COVID-19 has been reprofiled into future years. 

Following a review of the original plan and any deferred projects there is 
minimal scope for savings. The Property team has had to complete a number 
of unforeseen works, and high inflation has had to be covered by the planned 
contingency budget. Table 1  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

19. O
perational buildings do not provide the Council with a direct income source, 
but instead ensure that the Council can continue to provide services. 
Expenditure on operational buildings related to repairs and renewals will, as 
has historically been the case, be funded through borrowing. The revenue 
implication is contained in the budget update provided to Cabinet on February 
23rd, 2023 

20. The repairs and renewal expenditure on Commercial Properties will be funded 
from PWLB borrowing, with the associated borrowing costs being funded from 
income brought into the Council through rents and service charges. Although 
expenditure will be funded through borrowing, for some properties there may 
be cash reserves that can be used, or the cost of works recovered from 
tenants through the service charge for buildings. This will be monitored on a 
case-by-case basis and decisions delegated to the Chief Financial Officer and 
Service Director Property and capital to determine the most appropriate form 
of funding and deliver best value for money for the Council.  

 

2019/20 

Actual 

£ 

2020/21 

Actual 

£ 

2021/22 

Actual 

£ 

2022/23 

Forecast 

£ 

2023/24 

Forecast 

£ 

Operational 
Buildings 

192,000 344,000 438,970 649,603 1,115,000 

Commercial 
Buildings 

15,000 125,000 288,244 618,766 710,000 

Total 207,000 469,000 727,214 1,268,369 1,825,000 

30



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

21. Expenditure will be carefully programmed to ensure minimal disruption to any 
operations or business tenants, and to maximise income generation. Liability 
for dilapidations to the commercial portfolio will also be monitored, ensuring 
the Council works in a pro-active manner to minimise any potential costs 
should dilapidation claims arise. 

22. The Repairs and Renewal’s five-year plan will continue to be revisited 
annually and developed into a rolling programme, with an updated report 
being brought for approval to Cabinet every five years, with the next being 
scheduled for 2024/25. 

Risk Assessment 

23. This report outlines the progress to date against the approved Repair and 
Renewal Plan which aims to replace defective fabric and equipment with up-
to-date technology and comply with building regulations, statutory and industry 
standards.  

24. If the Council fails to maintain its property portfolio it risks financial implications 
due to the risk of increased or unforeseen costs and decreased revenue return 
from rental. Surveys and works to date have ensured that these risks are 
being managed and mitigated where appropriate. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

25. To progress the Climate Change Strategy and support decarbonisation, the 
Council is proactively looking at alternative fuel systems when replacing 
heating and cooling systems and replacing building fabric with high-
performance materials to improve thermal performance. Where possible 
materials and resources are sourced from local suppliers and manufacturers.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

26. It is not proportionate to carry out a full EIA at this point. However any future 
works should include an equality assessment and or necessary reasonable 
measures and or works carried out to facilitate this throughout the plan. 

Conclusion 

This report demonstrates the progress to date against the Repair and 
Renewal Plan 2019/20-2023/24.  

 
 
Date: February 24th, 2023 
Contact Officer: Jacqui Baxter  
Tel No:  
e-mail: Jacqui. Baxter@eastleigh.gov.uk Appendices Attached:

 1 
 

31



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

* List Background Papers None. 
 

32



R & R Plan of works updated 2023 (year 5) Status 

Estimated budget 

for 2022/23
Operational Investment 

Itchen Valley Country Park FRA and Infrastructure With CPT 200,000                          200,000 Committed

Black Horse House on going works, lobby and toilet refurbishments/Glazing repairsIn progress 100,000                          0 100,000 Committed

Various Garage works/demolish optional Part completed directed by Assets 10,000                            0 10,000

Southampton Road Units 1-3 Externals/EPC issues EPC assessment in progress 60,000                            0 60,000 Committed

Eastleigh House remedials including render cracks/sign off Part completed 100,000                          100,000 0

The Point Major Works Refurbish, FRA and Boilers Part completed 300,000                          300,000 0 Committed

Eastleigh Depot Major Works Various With CPT 360,000                          360,000 0 Committed

The Hub Various following Survey/FRA In progress 30,000                            30,000 0 Committed

Public Convenience, The Precinct Chandlers Ford Renov On hold -                                   0 0

Wessex House FRA, DB, Boilers, Water Tank With CPT 290,000                          0 290,000 Committed

Berry Theatre Remedials On going with HHC 25,000                            25,000 0

Dutton Lane Major works Remedials To be intergraded with Depot project -                                   0 0

101 leigh Road Externals On going deferred from 2020 10,000                            0 10,000

Shakespeare Business Centre EPC assessment in progress 125,000                          0 125,000 Committed

Supermarket Market Street ( Above offices) Renov On going 50,000                            0 50,000

Grange Park In progress 65,000                            0 65,000 Committed

Energy Audits and EPC upgrades >E On going 100,000                          100,000 0 Committed

Combined total to April 2024 including contingency and fees 1,825,000                       1,115,000 710,000

CPT - Corporate Project Team

EPC - Environmental Performance Certificate

127/02/2023

33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

Tuesday 7 March 2023 

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2023/24 
  

Report of the Chief Internal Auditor  

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Internal Audit Charter 2023/24 be approved. 
 

Summary 
 

 With effect from 1 April 2013 all public sector bodies were required to adopt 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). The Standards 
were revised April 2017. 

 The Internal Audit Charter defines the Internal Audit’s, purpose, authority 
and responsibility in line with the Standards.  

 This report presents the Internal Audit Charter for 2023/24.  

Statutory Powers 
S.151 Local Government Act 1972  
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 

 

 

 
 

 
Strategic Implications  

1. The Internal Audit Team provides independent assurance that the Council’s 
risk management, governance and control processes are efficient, compliant, 
work effectively and support ambitions of the Council.  Internal Audit helps the 
Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and control processes. 

Introduction  
 

2. With effect from 1 April 2013 all public sector bodies were required to adopt 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). These standards, 
which are based on the mandatory elements of the Institute of Internal 

35

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), are 
intended to promote further improvement in the professionalism, quality, 
consistency and effectiveness of internal audit across the public sector.  

3. The Standards were revised from 1 April 2017 to incorporate new and revised 
international standards and consequent amendments to the additional public 
sector requirements and interpretations.  

4. Within the Standards there is a requirement for an Internal Audit Charter to be 
approved annually by the Audit and Resources Committee.  This Committee 
approved the Internal Audit Charter 2022/23 on 8 March 2022. 

Internal Audit Charter 2023/24 

5. Appendix 1 provides the Audit and Resources Committee with the Internal 
Audit Charter for 2023/24.   

6. The purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit activity must be 
formally defined in an Internal Audit Charter, consistent with the Definition of 
Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards.  

7. The Internal Audit Charter establishes Internal Audit’s position within the 
organisation, including the nature of the Chief Internal Auditor’s functional 
reporting relationship with the Audit and Resources Committee, authorises 
access to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the 
performance of engagements, and defines the scope of internal audit 
activities. Final approval of the Internal Audit Charter resides with the Audit 
and Resources Committee.  

8. During 2022/23 the Charter was reviewed as part of the external assessment 
and no compliance issues were identified. 

Financial Implications 

9. As outlined in this report, the Internal Audit Charter will define Internal Audit’s 
purpose, authority and responsibility and therefore will ensure that the work of 
the team is clear and controlled by a robust set of principles.  There will be no 
change to the budget as a result of this report. 

Risk Assessment 

10. The Internal Audit Charter is a requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (the Standards). By not having an Internal Audit Charter the 
Internal Audit Section will fail to meet the requirements of the Standards.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

11. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is a 
report dealing with internal or procedural matters only. Therefore, it is 
considered that the Equality Duty does not need to be addressed and an 
Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 

36



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

12. There are no Climate Change and Environmental implications as a result of 
this report. It is a report dealing with Internal Audit procedural matters only.  
 

Conclusion 

13. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards an Internal 
Audit Charter 2023/24 has been drafted and it is recommended that it is 
approved by this Committee. 

 

LISA SMY 
CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR  

Date: 15 February 2023 
Contact Officer: Lisa Smy  
Tel No: 023 8068 8015 
e-mail: lisa.smy@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: One 
*Report No Internal Audit Charter 2023/24  
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

* The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 
 

  

37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eastleigh Borough Council 

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 

2023/24 
 
 
 

Version Date Author 

16/17 – 2
nd

 review  12
th
 July 2016 Joanne Cassar, Chief Internal 

Auditor  

17/18 – 3
rd

 review 18
th
 July 2017 Joanne Cassar, Lead Audit 

Specialist (Chief Internal 

Auditor) 

18/19 – 4
th
 review 

 

10
th
 July 2018 Joanne Cassar, Internal Audit 

Lead Specialist (Chief Internal 

Auditor)  

19/20 – 5
th
 review 12

th
 June 2019 

 

Joanne Cassar, Chief Internal 

Auditor  

20/21 – 6
th
 review  10

th
  March 2020 Joanne Cassar, Chief Internal 

Auditor  

21/22 – 7
th
 review 9

th
 March 2021 Joanne Cassar, Executive 

Head of Governance 

22/23 – 8
th
 review 8

th
 March 2022 Lisa Smy, Chief Internal 

Auditor (Acting) 

23/24 – 9
th
 review 7

th
 March 2023 Lisa Smy, Chief Internal 

Auditor 

  

39



Eastleigh Borough Council  
Internal Audit Charter 2023/24 
 

1. Standards for Professional Practice 
1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 provides a consolidated 

approach to audit standards across the whole of the public sector 
providing continuity, sound corporate governance and transparency. 

 
1.2 The mandatory guidance within the Institute of Internal Auditors’ 

International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) encompasses: 

 The Standards 

 Definition of Internal Auditing 

 Code of Ethics 

 Core Principles  
 
1.3 The Standards require all internal audit activities to implement and retain 

an ‘Internal Audit Charter’.  The Internal Audit Charter describes the 
purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit activity.  

 
1.4 The Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for reviewing the Charter and 

presenting it to the Service Director – Governance and Support 
(Monitoring Officer), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Corporate Leadership 
Board, and Audit and Resources Committee annually for review and 
approval. 

 

2. Purpose and Mission 
2.1 The purpose of Eastleigh Borough Council’s Internal Audit Team is to 

provide independent, objective assurance that the Council’s risk 
management, governance, and control processes are efficient, compliant, 
work effectively and support the ambitions of the Council. 

 
2.2 The mission of Internal Audit is to enhance and protect organisational 

value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight.  
 
2.3 Internal Audit will: 

 

 Demonstrate integrity, 

 Demonstrate competence and due professional care, 

 Be objective and free from undue influence (independent), 

 Align with strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation, 

 Demonstrate quality and continuous improvement, 

 Be appropriately positioned and adequately resourced, 

 Communicate effectively, 

 Provide risk- based assurance, 

 Be insightful, proactive, and future focused, 

 Promote a culture of anti-fraud, and 

 Promote organisational improvement. 
 

40



2.4 Internal Audit helps the Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of governance, risk management and control processes.  

 

3. Authority  
3.1 The requirement for an Internal Audit function is contained in Regulation 5 

of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which requires the Council 
to: 

 
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector 

internal auditing standards or guidance””. 
 
3.2 The standards for ‘proper practice’ in relation to internal audit are laid 

down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (updated 2017). The 
Standards applies to all internal audit service providers, whether in house, 
shared services or outsourced. 

 
3.3 The responsibility for maintaining an adequate and effective system of 

internal audit within Eastleigh Borough Council lies with the Chief 
Financial Officer (S151 Officer).  

 

3.4 The Chief Internal Auditor is accountable for ensuring responsibility is 
assigned for the effective management of the internal audit activity in 
accordance with the ‘Definition of Internal Auditing’, the ‘Code of Ethics’ 
and ‘the Standards’.  

 

3.5 Eastleigh Borough Council’s Constitution, Part 4, contains the Council’s 
Financial Procedure Rules. Internal Audit’s responsibilities are separately 
recorded in section 4 (paragraphs 4.11-4.17). 

 

4. Organisation  
4.1 The Chief Internal Auditor will report functionally to the Audit and 

Resources Committee and organisationally (day to day) to the Service 
Director – Governance and Support (Monitoring Officer) and Corporate 
Director (Chief Financial Officer (S151 officer)).  

 
4.2 Internal audit is independent in its planning and operation and as such the 

team has unrestricted access to, and can communicate and interact 
directly with the: 
 

 Chief Executive, 

 Monitoring Officer, Corporate Directors, Service Directors 

 Councillors including specifically the Chair of the Audit and 
Resources Committee (including private meetings without 
management present), 

 All levels of management, and 

 other council employees as necessary. 
 

41



4.3 The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Internal Auditor or their authorised 
representatives shall have authority to: 

 

 Enter at all times any Council premises or land, 

 Have access to any information from the Council which they require 
in order to carry out their duties, 

 Allocate resources, set frequencies, select subjects, determine 
scopes of work, apply techniques required to accomplish audit 
objectives, and issue reports, 

 Require, and receive, any necessary explanations as the Chief 
Financial Officer/Chief Internal Auditor deems necessary concerning 
any matter under examination, 

 Require any employee of the Council to produce any Council 
property or asset under their control, 

 Undertake planned observation or surveillance in accordance with 
relevant legislation following authorisation by the Authorised Officer, 
who shall be the Chief Financial Officer or, in their absence, the 
Legal Services Manager. 

 

5. Independence and Objectivity  
5.1 All Internal Auditors will conform to the Chartered Institute of Internal 

Auditors’ (CIIA) Code of Ethics. Where members of the Internal Audit team 
have attained membership with other professional bodies such as: the 
ACCA, AAT or CIPFA, those officers must also comply with their relevant 
bodies’ ethical requirements. In addition to this, all Internal Auditors will 
have regard to the Standards of Public Life’s “Seven Principles of Public 
Life” and the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

 
5.2 The Chief Internal Auditor will ensure that the Internal Audit function 

remains free from all conditions that threaten the ability of internal auditors 
to carry out their responsibilities in an unbiased manner, including matters 
of audit selection, scope, procedures, frequency, timing, and report 
content. If the Chief Internal Auditor determines that independence or 
objectivity may be impaired in fact or appearance, the details of the 
impairment will be disclosed to appropriate parties. 

 

5.3 Internal Auditors must maintain an unbiased attitude that allows them to 
perform engagements objectively and in such a manner that they believe 
in their work product, that no quality compromises are made, and that they 
do not subordinate their judgement on audit matters to others.   

 

5.4 Internal Auditors will not have any direct operational responsibilities or 
authority over any of the activities audited. Accordingly, Internal Auditors 
will not implement internal controls, develop procedures, install systems, 
prepare records, or engage in any other activity that may impair their 
judgment including: 

 

 Assessing specific operations for which they had responsibility for 
within the previous year 

 Performing any operational duties for Eastleigh Borough Council 

42



 Initiating or approving transactions external to the Internal Audit 
function  

 Directing the activities of any Eastleigh Borough Council employee 
not employed by the Internal Audit function; except to the extent that 
such employees have been appropriately assigned to auditing teams 
or to otherwise assist internal auditors.  

 
5.5 Where the Internal Audit team have or is expected to have roles and/or 

responsibilities that fall outside of internal auditing, safeguards will be 
established to limit impairments to independence or objectivity.  

 
5.6 Internal auditors will: 

 

 disclose any impairment of independence or objectivity, in fact or 
appearance, to appropriate parties, 

 exhibit professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating, and 
communicating information about the activity or process being 
examined, 

 make balanced assessments of all available and relevant facts and 
circumstances, 

 take necessary precautions to avoid being unduly influenced by their 
own interests or by others in forming judgments. 

 
5.7 The Chief Internal Auditor will confirm to the Audit and Resources 

Committee, at least annually, the organisational independence of the 
internal audit function. The Chief Internal Auditor will disclose to the Audit 
and Resources Committee any interference and related implications in 
determining the scope of internal auditing, performing work and/or 
communicating results.  

 

6. Internal Audit Resources 
6.1 For the Internal Audit team to fulfil their responsibilities, the team must be 

appropriately staffed in terms of numbers, professional qualifications, 
skills, and experience. Resources must be effectively deployed to achieve 
the approved risk-based plan. The mix of available knowledge, skills and 
other competencies will be considered once the risk-based plan is drafted 
to ensure they are sufficient to deliver the plan. 

 
6.2 It is the responsibility of the Chief Internal Auditor to report concerns over 

a lack of resources to the Chief Financial Officer and to the Audit and 
Resources Committee. 

 

6.3 If necessary, the Chief Financial Officer and the Chair of the Audit and 
Resources Committee will agree the level of additional and or specialist 
resources. Following which, a recommendation will be made to Cabinet 
seeking approval.  

 

6.4 Employment of staff will be in compliance with the Council’s Human 
Resources policies. 

 

43



6.5 External resources will be procured in line with the Council’s Financial 
Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules. There is a further specific 
requirement under the Standards that approval be sought from the Audit 
and Resources Committee to engage in any significant additional 
consultancy services not already included within the audit plan. 

 

6.6 The Chief Internal Auditor should hold a professional qualification (CMIIA, 
CIPFA or equivalent) and be suitably experienced. Each job role within the 
internal audit structure will detail skills and competencies within the 
approved job description and person specification. In line with Council 
policy and the Standards, each member of the team will be assessed 
against these predetermined competencies and annual objectives through 
performance monitoring. Auditors are also required to maintain a record of 
their continual professional development in line with their professional 
body.  

 
7. Scope of Internal Audit activities  
7.1 The scope of internal audit activities encompasses, but is not limited to, 

objective examinations of evidence for the purpose of providing 
independent assessments to the Audit and Resources Committee, 
Management Team, and other stakeholders on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of governance, risk management, and control processes for 
Eastleigh Borough Council.  

 
7.2 Internal audit assessments include evaluating whether: 

 

 Risks relating to the achievement of Eastleigh Borough Council’s 
strategic objectives are appropriately identified and managed, 

 The actions of Eastleigh Borough Council are in compliance with its 
policies, procedures, and applicable laws, regulations, and 
governance standards, 

 The results of operations or programs are consistent with established 
goals and objectives, 

 Operations or programs are being carried out effectively and 
efficiently, 

 Established processes and systems enable compliance with the 
policies, procedures, laws, and regulations that could significantly 
impact Eastleigh Borough Council, 

 Information and the means used to identify, measure, analyse, 
classify, and report such information are reliable and have integrity, 

 Resources and assets are acquired economically, used efficiently, 
and protected adequately. 

 
7.3 The Chief Internal Auditor will report periodically to senior management 

and the Audit and Resources Committee regarding: 
 

 The internal audit function’s purpose, authority, and responsibility, 

 The internal audit function’s plan and performance relative to its plan, 

44



 The internal audit function’s conformance with The IIA’s Code of 
Ethics and Standards, and action plans to address any significant 
conformance issues, 

 Significant risk exposures and control issues, including fraud risks, 
governance issues, and other matters requiring the attention of, or 
requested by, the Audit and Resources Committee,  

 Results of audit engagements or other activities, 

 Resource requirements, 

 Any response to risk by management that may be unacceptable. 
 
7.4 The Chief Internal Auditor also coordinates activities, where possible, and 

considers relying upon the work of other internal and external assurance 
and consulting service providers as needed. The internal audit function 
may perform advisory activities, the nature and scope of which will be 
agreed with the accountable officer, provided the internal audit function 
does not assume management responsibility. 

 
7.5 Opportunities for improving the efficiency of governance, risk 

management, and control processes may be identified during 
engagements. These opportunities will be communicated to the 
appropriate level of management. 

 

7.6 A range of internal audit services are provided (annex 1) to form the Chief 
Internal Auditor’s annual opinion. The approach is determined by the Chief 
Internal Auditor and will depend on the level of assurance required, the 
significance of the objectives under review relative to the Council’s 
success, the risks inherent in the achievement of objectives and the level 
of confidence required that controls are well designed and operating as 
intended.  

 

8. Fraud  
 
8.1 Internal Audit has a role in the prevention, detection, and investigation of 

fraud. Internal Auditors will plan and evaluate their work so as to have a 
reasonable expectation of detecting fraud and identifying any significant 
weaknesses in internal controls. Internal Audit will provide independent 
assurance on the effectiveness of the processes put in place by 
management to manage the risk of fraud. 
 

8.2 The Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for ensuring Internal Audit 
planned work includes time for pro-active counter fraud activities through 
the development of an Annual Fraud Action Plan.  Progress will be 
reported annually to the Audit and Resources Committee through the 
Corporate Fraud Report.  
 

8.3 Where any matter arises which involves, or is thought to involve, 
irregularities or theft concerning cash, stores, data or other property 
functions of the Council, the appropriate Manager shall forthwith notify the 
Chief Internal Auditor who shall take such steps as they consider 
necessary by way of investigation and report. If there is evidence or strong 

45



suspicion of fraud the Chief Internal Auditor will normally bring the matter 
to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer and/or Chief Executive. 

 
8.4 The Chief Internal auditor shall report promptly and fully to the Chief 

Financial Officer and Chief Executive and, if appropriate, to the Chair of 
Audit and Resources Committee, on the results of an investigation into an 
irregularity or suspected irregularity. 

 
8.5 The Chief Internal Auditor shall submit a report to the Audit and 

Resources Committee on the performance of Internal Audit activity for the 
financial year, by 31 July of the following year and at other times as 
circumstances dictate. 

 
9. Responsibility  
Chief Internal Auditor 
9.1 The Chief Internal Auditor has the responsibility to: 

 

 Submit, at least annually, to Corporate Leadership Board and the 
Audit and Resources Committee a risk-based internal audit plan for 
review and approval and an Internal Audit Charter, 

 Communicate to Corporate Leadership Board and the Audit and 
Resources Committee the impact of resource limitations on the 
internal audit plan, 

 Review and adjust the internal audit plan, as necessary, in response 
to changes in Eastleigh Borough Council’s business, risks, 
operations, programmes, systems, and controls, 

 Communicate to Corporate Leadership Board and the Audit and 
Resources Committee any significant interim changes to the internal 
audit plan for review and approval, 

 Communicate to Corporate Leadership Board and the Audit and 
Resources Committee quarterly on internal audit performance 
relative to its plan and other matters, 

 Produce annually an Annual Internal Audit Opinion and report 
providing a conclusion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and 
control that can be used by the Council to inform its governance 
statement, 

 Ensure each engagement of the internal audit plan is executed, 
including the establishment of objectives and scope, the assignment 
of appropriate and adequately supervised resources, the 
documentation of work programs and testing results, and the 
communication of engagement results with applicable conclusions 
and recommendations to appropriate parties, 

 Follow up on engagement findings and corrective actions, and report 
quarterly to Corporate Leadership Board and the Audit and 
Resources Committee any corrective actions (high risk 
recommendations) not effectively implemented, 

 Ensure the principles of integrity, objectivity, confidentiality, and 
competency are applied and upheld, 

46



 Ensure the internal audit function collectively possesses or obtains 
the knowledge, skills, and other competencies needed to meet the 
requirements of the internal audit charter, 

 Ensure trends and emerging issues that could impact the Council are 
considered and communicated to Corporate Leadership Board and 
the Audit and Resources Committee as appropriate, 

 Ensure emerging trends and successful practices in internal auditing 
are considered, 

 Establish and ensure adherence to policies and procedures 
designed to guide the internal audit function, 

 Ensure adherence to the Council’s relevant policies and procedures 
unless such policies and procedures conflict with the internal audit 
charter. Any such conflicts will be resolved or otherwise 
communicated to Corporate Leadership Board and the Audit and 
Resources Committee, 

 Promote an anti-fraud and anti-money laundering culture. 
 
Corporate Leadership Board  
9.2 As those responsible for the leadership and direction of the Council it is 

imperative that the Corporate Leadership Board are engaged in: 
 

 Approving the Internal Audit Charter annually, 

 Approving the risk-based internal audit plan, 

 Receiving communications from the Chief Internal Auditor on the 
internal audit’s performance relative to its plan and other matters, 

 Making appropriate enquiries of the Chief Internal Auditor to 
determine whether there are inappropriate scope and resource 
limitations, 

 Receiving the results of internal and external assessments of the 
quality assurance and improvement programme, including areas of 
non-conformance. 

 
Audit and Resources Committee 
9.3 Organisational independence is effectively achieved when the Chief 

Internal Auditor reports functionally to the Audit and Resources 
Committee. Such reporting will include: 

 

 Approving the Internal Audit Charter annually, 

 Approving the risk-based Internal Audit Plan, 

 Receiving communications from the Chief Internal Auditor on the 
internal audit’s performance relative to its plan and other matters, 

 Making appropriate enquiries of management and the Chief Internal 
Auditor to determine whether there are inappropriate scope and 
resource limitations, 

 Receiving the results of internal and external assessments of the 
quality assurance and improvement programme, including areas of 
non-conformance, 

 Approval of significant consulting services not already included in the 
audit plan, prior to the acceptance of the engagement, 

47



 Approval of the application of audit days included in the internal audit 
plan for member requested reviews/scrutiny is utilised, prior to the 
acceptance of the engagement.  

 
10. Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme  
10.1 The internal audit function will maintain a quality assurance and 

improvement programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit 
activity. The program will include an evaluation of the internal audit 
function’s conformance with the Standards and an evaluation of whether 
internal auditors apply The IIA’s Code of Ethics. The program will also 
assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit team/activity 
and identify opportunities for improvement. 
 

10.2 The Chief Internal Auditor will communicate to senior management and 
the Audit and Resources Committee on the internal audit function’s quality 
assurance and improvement programme, including results of internal 
assessments (both ongoing and periodic) and external assessments 
conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, independent 
assessor or assessment team. This arrangement and scope must be 
agreed with the Chief Financial Officer, Audit and Resources Committee, 
and the Independent Assessor. This arrangement will be met through 
reciprocal arrangement with another local authority or a suitably qualified 
independent contractor. 

 

11. Review of the Internal Audit Charter 
 

11.1 This Charter will be reviewed annually (minimum) by the Chief Internal 
Auditor and presented to Corporate Leadership Board, and the Audit and 
Resources Committee for approval. 

  

48



Annex 1 
Eastleigh Borough Council’s Internal Audit function can provide: 
 

 Assurance reviews – where risks and controls associated with the 
mitigation of that risk are assessed and tested to determine any residual 
risk to the achievement of objectives. Recommendations will be made 
where appropriate and an audit opinion will be provided. Further details 
of the grading of recommendations and categories of opinion can be 
found in Annex 2. 
 

 Compliance reviews – ensuring compliance with legislation and 
standards either as part of assurance assignments or separate limited 
review. 
 

 IT Audit reviews – specialist review of the IT control environment 
(specialist resource procured where necessary). 
 

 Consultancy engagements – where advice and support can be 
provided either informally through discussion or formally through 
providing reports. It should be noted that it is not appropriate for an 
Internal Auditor to become involved in establishing or implementing 
controls or assuming any operational responsibility. Any advisory work 
performed must not prejudice the scope, objectivity, and quality of future 
audit work.  
 

 System development reviews – providing assurance during the 
development of new systems that adequate controls have been 
developed; system testing and training is sufficient, data integrity is not 
impaired, system documentation is sufficient and that the needs of the 
user have been met. 
 

 Process improvement – identifying process improvements through 
either ad hoc reviews or through planned audit engagements.  
 

 Fraud and irregularity reviews – Internal Audit may provide specialist 
skills to lead or assist in fraud or irregularity investigations. Internal 
Audit’s role in this is outlined in the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Policy.  

 

 Project management reviews and support – post implementation 
reviews as requested by Management Team performed in conjunction 
with the Project Management Office 
 

 Contract management reviews – sign-off of contract final accounts.  
 

 Value for money – review of arrangements e.g., Partnerships, to ensure 
value for money is being achieved. 
 

 Governance support - inputting in the drafting of the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

49



Annex 2 
 

Internal Audit – Assurance Methodology 
 
Opinion 
1. For each internal audit assignment, we arrive at a conclusion that 

assesses the audit assurance in one of four categories. These will arise 
from: 

 Our assessment of the controls that are in place and; 

 Our assessment of compliance with these controls. 
 

Level Control Assessment Compliance Assessment 

Nil There are no controls in 
place. 
 

There is no compliance with 
controls. 
 

Limited Significant weaknesses in 
controls exist. 
 

There is a significant level of 
non-compliance with 
controls. 

Adequate There are opportunities to 
improve controls.  
 

There is non-compliance with 
some of the controls. 

Substantial There are robust controls in 
place.  
 

There is compliance with 
controls. 

 
 
Recommendations 
2. Recommendations are graded to assist management with prioritising 

implementation as follows: 
 

Priority Explanation 

1 

(Critical risk) 

A major or serious control weakness as a key control is 

either missing, failing or not being adhered to which 

requires immediate action and exposes the Council to a 

critical risk. 

2 

(High risk) 

A significant control weakness as a key control is either 

missing, not working or not being adhered to and 

exposes the Council to a high risk.  

3 

(Medium Risk) 

An issue which needs to be corrected to ensure controls 

are adequate or operating effectively or to improve 

compliance which exposes the Council to a medium risk.  

4 

(Low Risk) 

An opportunity to improve the controls or strengthen 

compliance although this does not expose the Council to 

any critical or significant risk. 

 

50



  

AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday 7 March 2023 
 

STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2023/24 
 

Report of the Corporate Director (Chief Financial Officer) & Chief 
Internal Auditor 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that: 

(1) the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2023/24 be approved. 
 

 

 

Summary  

 This report presents the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 2023/24 (Appendix 1). 
The Strategic Internal Audit Plan has been prepared on behalf of the Chief 
Financial Officer in recognition of her responsibilities under S.151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015, and in 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017. 

 
Statutory Powers 
 
S151 Local Government Act 1972 
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 

 
Strategic Implications  

1. The Internal Audit Team provides independent assurance that the Council’s 
risk management, governance and control processes are efficient, compliant, 
work effectively and support the ambitions of the Council.   

Introduction 

2. Appendix 1 of this report presents to Councillors the Strategic Internal Audit 
Plan for 2023/24.  
 

3. It is expected that for 2023/24 the team will consist of the Chief Internal 
Auditor, Internal Auditors (1.3 FTE) and an Internal Audit Apprentice (1.0 FTE).    
 

Finance/Risk Implications 

4. There are no financial implications arising from this report. The report is 
intended to highlight the audit coverage over the next year. The work 
performed by the Internal Audit Section provides management with a good 
degree of assurance that their risks, identified by the reviews, are adequately 
controlled or identifies where they may require strengthening. 

 

51

Agenda Item 8



  

Equality & Diversity Implications 

5. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report and an Equality 
Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 
 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

6. There are no Climate Change and Environmental implications as a result of 
this report.  It is a report dealing with Internal Audit procedural matters only.  

 
Conclusion 

7. The Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2023/24 has been prepared in accordance 
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, following a comprehensive 
need and risk assessment and consultation. 

8. Members of this Committee will continue to receive an update on performance 
against the Annual Plan by way of Quarterly Monitoring Statements.  

 
LISA SMY - CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR 

 
Date: 17 February 2023 
Contact Officer: Lisa Smy  
Tel No: 023 8068 8015 
e-mail: lisa.smy@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: One 
*Report No Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2023/24  
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 – SECTION 100D 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based, and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report. 
 

 Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2023/24 

 Internal Audit Charter 2023/24 

52



 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGIC PLAN  

2023/24 

 
 
 
 
Contents         
Introduction          Page 2 
Conformance with Standards       Page 2  
Council Risk & the Audit Universe       Page 2 
Internal Audit Resources        Page 3 
Developing the Internal Audit Plan      Page 3 
Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2023/24      Page 6 
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2023/24      Page 6 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix One – Risk Based Strategy      Page 10 
Appendix Two – Audit Opinion & Gradings (Assurance Methodology)  Page 11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chief Internal Auditor – Lisa Smy 
 
 

53



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

2 

 

Introduction 
 

1. The role of Internal Audit is best summarised through its definition within the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) as: 

 

“an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes”.  

 
2. The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk 

management processes, control systems, accounting records and 
governance arrangements. Internal audit plays a vital role in advising the 
Council that these arrangements are in place and operating effectively. The 
Council’s response to internal audit activity should lead to the strengthening 
of the control environment and therefore contribute to the achievement of the 
organisation’s objectives.  

 

3. The aim of Internal Audit’s work programme is to provide independent and 
objective assurance to management, in relation to the business, activities, 
systems or processes under review that:  

 

 the framework of internal control, risk management and governance is 
appropriate and operating effectively; and  

 risk to the achievement of the Council’s objectives is identified, assessed 
and managed to a defined acceptable level.  

 
4. The Internal Audit Plan provides the mechanism through which the Chief 

Internal Auditor can ensure most appropriate use of internal audit resources 
to provide a clear statement of assurance on risk management, internal 
control and governance arrangements.   

 
5. A copy of the assurance methodology can be found in appendix 2. 

 
Conformance with Standards 
 

6. The Strategic Internal Audit Plan has been prepared in recognition of the 
responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer under S.151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 and in 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 (the 
Standards). 

 
Council Risk & the Audit Universe 
 

7. The Standards require the Chief Internal Auditor to develop and maintain a 
risk-based strategy for delivering the internal audit service. The risk strategy 
methodology can be found in Appendix 1.  

 

54



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

3 

 

8. There are service plans for each of the service areas to support the 
Corporate Strategy and the corporate objectives. Supporting the service 
plans there are Risk Registers which are closely aligned to corporate 
objectives. The Risk Registers are fundamental to the development of the 
Internal Audit Plan. The Chief Internal Auditor will monitor the risk registers 
closely over the course of the year to ensure the plan remains agile to the 
rapidly changing landscape. 

 
9. The Audit Universe identifies the main auditable areas within the Council. 

This is kept under regular review and updated to reflect new ways of working.  
Each auditable area is risk assessed annually as part of the planning process 
and a risk factor is applied to as summarised below (see appendix 1 for risk 
strategy methodology). The audit cycle is indicative and will be dependent on 
resource capacity.  

 

 High – audit every 2-3 years 

 Medium – audit on a cyclical basis every 3-5 years. 

 Low – audit on a non-cyclical basis based on a continued assessment of 
risk. 
 

Internal Audit Resources  
 

10. For 2023/24 the team will consist of the Chief Internal Auditor, Internal 
Auditor (1.3 FTE) and an Career Grade Internal Auditor (1.0 FTE).    
 

Developing the Internal Audit Plan 
 

11. To ensure that the Audit Plan is aligned to the Corporate Strategy, Service 
Plans, and Risk Management Framework and that it continues to add value, 
consultation took place with the Corporate Leadership Board.  
 

12. Based on the conversations with key stakeholders, review of key corporate 
documents and risk registers, along with the Team’s understanding of the 
organisation a three-year Strategic Internal Audit Plan and an Annual Internal 
Audit Plan for the coming year have been developed. It should be noted that 
the plan has been designed to be fluid.  

 
13. During the year dialogue with key stakeholders will continue to ensure that 

the plan reflects the needs of the Council.  
 

14. The Council is reminded that internal audit is only one source of assurance 
and through the delivery of our plan we will not, and do not seek to cover all 
risks and processes within the organisation.  

 
15. In compiling the plan the following was considered: 

 Any audit not completed as part of the Annual Plan for 2022/23 has been 
reassessed for risk and incorporated into the 3-year Strategic Internal 
Audit Plan. 

 A review of the Audit Universe was carried out and the following changes 

55



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

4 

 

were made: 

New reviews  

o Cemeteries 

 A review of key control areas (major systems) which are key internal 
control systems and are specifically defined as being those that control the 
Council’s collection and paymaster functions and the associated corporate 
accounting arrangements are reviewed biennially and require a resource 
of 110 days.  

 A total of 28 days has been included in the Plan for Corporate Governance 
reviews which includes input into the Annual Governance Statement, 
Business Continuity Planning, Local Government Transparency Agenda, 
Partnership Arrangements and the Quality Assessment and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP) for Internal Audit.   

 10 days has been made available for Councillors to request a review 
during the year which is high risk and is not covered elsewhere in the plan. 
Agreement of the Chair of Audit & Resources Committee will be sought 
prior to any review commencing. 

 20 days is included in the plan for consultancy and value for money 
reviews which will determined through the year as a result of corporate 
performance monitoring. Internal Audit will work closely with Performance 
and Governance to align work, avoid duplication and improve processes.  

 A contingency of 20 days is included within the Plan to cover special 
investigations and other Counter Fraud arrangements not specifically 
provided for.  Investigations into potentially fraudulent activities will always 
be undertaken as a matter of priority.   

 20 days has also been included within the Plan to cover the transition of 
work between 2022/23 and 2023/24 and a provision of 20 days has also 
been made for demand-led activity (Help & Advice). Past experience has 
indicated that these contingencies are likely to be fully utilised. 

 An additional 10 days has been included in the plan for supporting the 
response to the Covid 19 pandemic. 
 

16. In developing the plan, it must also be recognised that Internal Audit are 
integral to the review of systems, processes and procedures that are being 
undertaken and whilst the Standards are specific in identifying the 
requirements of the planning process, there is also a need to maintain 
flexibility within the plan. Both the plan and the associated risk assessment 
will be kept under regular review and updated as the results of audit work are 
finalised, new systems are developed, and other factors arise which may 
affect organisational priorities. As a result, the plan will remain fluid and some 
work may be accelerated, and other work may attract a lower priority. 

  

56



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

5 

 

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2023/24  
 

17. Based on the above principles, the risk factor, consideration of current and 
new initiatives during the forthcoming year and liaison with key stakeholders, 
the Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2023/24 is shown in the table below.  

 
18. This Plan is endorsed by the Corporate Director (Chief Financial Officer) and 

the Chief Internal Audtior as being sound, robust and sufficient to safeguard 
the Council’s internal control framework and sufficient to enable the Chief 
Internal Auditor to produce an Annual Assurance Statement.  
 

 2022/23 
Agreed days 
 

2023/24 
PLANNED 

DAYS 

MAJOR SYSTEMS  95 110 

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

28 28 

CORPORATE SUPPORT 115 118 

CORPORATE SYSTEMS 20 0 

FINANCE, 
IMPROVEMENT AND 
HOUSING PROGRAMME  

45 0 

PROJECT DELIVERY 0 10 

PROPERTY & 
COMMERCIAL 

40 20 

GOVERNANCE & 
SUPPORT 

20 25 

PEOPLE & 
COMMUNITIES 

0 35 

PLANNING & 
ENVIRONMENT 

10 25 

NEIGHBOURHOOD & 
COUNTRYSIDE 

25 10 

CONTRACT AUDIT 10 10 

COUNCILLORS 
SCRUTINY 

10 10 

INVESTIGATIONS/ 
CONTINGENCY/ 
COUNTER FRAUD 

20 20 

CONSULTANCY 20 20 

PRIOR YEAR END 
COMPLETION 

20 20 

HELP & ADVICE 20 20 

COVID-19 SUPPORT 20 10 

TOTAL DAYS 518 491 

Internal house resource  452 425 

Casual resource* 66 66 

TOTAL DAYS 518 491 

Variance 0 0 

57



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

6 

 

  

 
19. The Annual Internal Audit Plan provides the mechanism through which the 

Chief Internal Auditor can ensure most appropriate use of internal audit 
resources to provide a clear statement of assurance on risk management, 
internal control and governance arrangements. Detailed below is the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan for 2023/24.  

58



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

7 

 

 Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2023/24 
 

AUDIT UNIVERSE 

RISK INDEX 
H=High 

M=Medium 
L=Low  

(see appendix 1) 

2023/24 
PLANNED AUDIT DAYS 

Major Financial Systems 

Accounting System H 15 

Accounting for Fixed Assets H  

Budgetary control H  

Treasury Management H  

Cash Collection & Banking H  

Bank Reconciliation H 15 

Accounts Receivable (Debtors) H  

Accounts Payable (Creditors) H  

Payroll H 15 

Local Taxation H 25 

Housing Benefit & Council Tax Support H 25 

Contingency - 15 

Sub total  110 

Corporate Governance 

Annual Governance Statement - 2 

Internal review of Audit - 5 

External review of Audit - 2 

Follow up of Audit Recommendations - 15 

Local Government Transparency Agenda  - 4 

Sub total  28 

Corporate Support 

Audit Liaison  - 13 

Prevention of Fraud & Corruption - 50 

National Fraud Initiative - 15 

IT System Development/Implementation - 15 

Corporate Risk Management Group - 2 

Procurement Executive Group - 2 

ICT Security Group - 2 

Change and Improvement Board - 2 

Other Programme Boards/Project Groups  - 2 

Election Support  15 

Sub total  118 

Corporate Systems  

Enforcement (various statutory functions) H  

Business Continuity Planning H  

Management Agreements (various 
contract arrangements) 

M  

Time & Attendance System M  

Strategic Planning H  

Grant Funding (various applications for 
funding) 

M  

59



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

8 

 

AUDIT UNIVERSE 

RISK INDEX 
H=High 

M=Medium 
L=Low  

(see appendix 1) 

2023/24 
PLANNED AUDIT DAYS 

Markets L  

Sub total  0 

Finance & Housing Programme 

Community Investment Programme H  

Taxation – VAT + Sub Contractors & IR35 H  

Authorised Signatories M  

Corporate Credit Card M  

Petty Cash L  

Cheque Security & Control L  

Business Applications (including Mobile 
Phones) 

M  

ICT Service Delivery & Management M  

IT Infrastructure M  

Corporate Performance Management M  

Sub total  0 

Project Delivery  

Project Management/PIR Controls H  

One Horton Heath H 10 

Sub total  10 

Property & Commercial 

Asset Management H  

Asset Maintenance H 10 

Commercial Rents H  

Facilities Management (Cleaners, Alarms, 
CCTV etc) 

H  

Housing Development (Transactions) H 10 

HRA Housing Revenue Account H  

Wessex House M  

Sub total  20 

Governance & Support 

Insurance – Management & Administration H 10 

Corporate Governance H 5 

Risk Management  H  

Procurement Arrangements H  

Contract & Partnership Management H  

Information Legislation (Data 
Protection/FOI) 

M  

Records and Information Management  M  

Legal Fees M  

Licensing – SCC Partnership M  

Election Expenses M  

Electoral Registration  M  

Members Allowances L  

Health & Safety/Events H  

60



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

9 

 

AUDIT UNIVERSE 

RISK INDEX 
H=High 

M=Medium 
L=Low  

(see appendix 1) 

2023/24 
PLANNED AUDIT DAYS 

Management/CDM/Legionella/Asbestos 

Safeguarding – Children & Vulnerable 
Adults 

H 10 

Recruitment & Selection M  

Training & Development M  

Sickness Absence Monitoring M  

Employee Performance Management M  

Travel, Subsistence, Officer Expenses M  

Social Media Policy M  

Marketing M  

Car & Travel Loans L  

Sponsorship (all) & Advertising Income L  

Communications & Civic Mayoralty L  

Sub total  25 

People & Communities 

Case Management  H  

Customer Complaints & Compliments M  

Controlled Stationery  L  

Print Unit (Glass Box)  L  

Hampshire Homechoice (Joint Housing 
Register) 

M 10 

Homelessness M 10 

Tenancy Start Up/Top Up Rent M  

Housing Grants & DFGs M 15 

The Point & The Berry 
(Business/Operations) 

M  

Arts Development (inc. Youth Theatre) M  

Sports & Active Lifestyle – 
Healthworks/Park Sports 

L  

Community Grants M  

Sub total   35 

Planning & Environment 

Climate & Environmental Strategy H 10 

Environmental Licencing & Food (inc. 
Private Rented Accommodation)  

M  

Environmental Nuisance  M   

Developers’ Contributions H 15 

Planning Fees  M  

Land Charges M  

Building Control Fees  M  

Economic Development M  

Sub total   25 

Neighbourhood & Green Spaces 

Fleet Management H  

61



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

10 

 

AUDIT UNIVERSE 

RISK INDEX 
H=High 

M=Medium 
L=Low  

(see appendix 1) 

2023/24 
PLANNED AUDIT DAYS 

Commercial Waste M  

Waste Management (Residual & 
Recycling) 

M  

Garden Waste System M  

Street Scene M  

Pest Control M  

Small works M  

Vehicle Workshop M  

Car Parks M  

Residents Permits M  

Civil Parking Enforcement  M  

CCTV M  

Traffic Management M  

Markets L  

Allotments L  

Cemeteries M 10 

Community Safety M  

Tree Stock Management (inc. TPO) H  

Countryside Land Management (all parks) M  

Country Park Operations (IVCP & 
Lakeside) 

M  

Hire of Community Facilities L  

Car Club L  

Sub total   10 

Contract Audit  10 

Members Scrutiny  10 

Consultancy/Improvement (VFM) - 20 

Investigations/Contingency - 20 

Prior Year Audit Completion  - 20 

Help and Advice - 20 

Covid-19 Support - 10 

Total Audit Days  491 

62



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

11 

 

Appendix 1 
 
Internal Audit - Risk Based Strategy 2023/24 

The Audit Universe details the main auditable areas across Eastleigh Borough Council. The 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 (PSIAS 2017) require the Chief Internal Auditor 

(HIA) to establish risk-based plans to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, 

consistent with the organisation’s goals.  

“The HIA is responsible for developing a risk-based plan. The HIA takes into account the 

organisation’s risk management framework, including using risk appetite levels set by 

management for the different activities or parts of the organisation. If a framework does not 

exist, the HIA uses their own judgement of the risks after consideration or input from senior 

management and the Audit & Resources Committee. The HIA must review and adjust the 

plan, as necessary, in response to changes in the organisation’s business, risks, operations, 

programmes, systems and controls.” Source PSIAS 2017.  

Each year the Chief Internal Auditor carries out a Risk Assessment of each auditable area 

which assists in determining the audit coverage for that coming year. The Internal Audit Plan 

is then presented to the Audit & Resources Committee for approval in March each year.  

The risk assessment is split into 4 areas; Corporate Priority, Control Environment 

assessment, Financial risk score and Reputational risk score. This is determined by the 

Chief Internal Auditor’s assessment with input from responsible officers, Audit & Resources 

Committee and External Audit alongside a review of Risk Registers. For any new auditable 

areas the control environment will be given a mid-range score of 2.  

Corporate Priority  Score Control Environment  Score 

High 

Medium 

Low 

3 

2 

1 

Poor 

Average 

Good 

3 

2 

1 

Financial Risk Score Reputational Risk Score 

High 

Medium 

Low 

3 

2 

1 

High 

Medium 

Low 

3 

2 

1 

     

Each audit is risked assessed using the 4 areas above and the score is combined to give an 

overall score. This score will determine if the audit is risked as high, medium or low as 

shown below: 

Overall score: 

Score Risk Audit frequency 

5 or less Low risk

  

Audit on a non-cyclical basis based on a continued 

assessment of risk  

Score 6-8 Medium risk audit on a cyclical basis every 3-5 years 

Score 9+ High risk audit every 2-3 years 

 

 

63



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

12 

 

 
Appendix 2 

Internal Audit – Assurance Methodology 
 
Opinion 
1. For each internal audit assignment, we assess the framework of control for the 

activity under review based on our audit findings and arrive at a conclusion that 
assesses the audit assurance in one of four categories. These will arise from: 

 Our assessment of the controls that are in place and; 

 Our assessment of compliance with these controls. 
 

Level Control Assessment Compliance Assessment 

Nil 
(red) 

There are no controls in place. 
 

There is no compliance with 
controls. 
 

Limited 
(amber) 

Significant weaknesses in 
controls exist. 
 

There is a significant level of 
non-compliance with controls. 

Adequate 
(yellow) 

There are opportunities to 
improve controls.  
 

There is non-compliance with 
some of the controls. 

Substantial 
(green) 

There are robust controls in 
place.  
 

There is compliance with 
controls. 

 
 
Recommendations 
2. Recommendations are graded to assist management with prioritising 

implementation as follows: 
 

Priority Explanation 

1 

(Critical risk) 

A major or serious control weakness as a key control is 

either missing, failing or not being adhered to which requires 

immediate action and exposes the Council to a critical risk. 

2 

(High risk) 

A significant control weakness as a key control is either 

missing, not working or not being adhered to and exposes 

the Council to a high risk.  

3 

(Medium Risk) 

An issue which needs to be corrected to ensure controls are 

adequate or operating effectively or to improve compliance 

which exposes the Council to a medium risk.  

4 

(Low Risk) 

An opportunity to improve the controls or strengthen 

compliance although this does not expose the Council to 

any critical or significant risk. 

 

64



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN: June 2022 - March 2023 

 
This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken. 
 
A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to: 
 
(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 

larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or 
 
(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 

Borough of Eastleigh. 
 
The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework. 
 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

23 February 2023 
 

Yes 

 
Bampton House Energy 
performance improvements  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023   
 

This report seeks approval of 
funding to carry out 
additional building works to 
the refurbishment of 
Bampton House. This will 
increase the energy rating of 
the building from an E to a C. 

Nicola Treeby /  
 

Yes 

 
Corporate Plan 2023 - 2026  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

Approval of a new Plan 
setting out the Council’s 
main strategic priorities and 
activities for the coming 3 
years. 

Diccon Bright, 
Strategic 
Planning 
Manager /  
 

65

A
genda Item

 9



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

2 

Yes 

 
2023 - 2024 Borough Council 
Budget  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

To consider and recommend 
the 2023 – 2024 Borough 
Council Budget to Council for 
approval. 

Andy Smith, 
Executive Head 
of Finance and 
Housing 
Programme 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/  
 

Yes 

 
Vehicle and Plant Replacement 
Programme for the next 5 years  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023   
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
consider and approve a 
report that sets out the 
vehicle and plant needs for 
the Council for the next 5 
years. 

Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Jacqui Baxter, 
Lead Asset 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

23 March 2023 
 

Yes 

 
Public Transport Strategy  
 

Cabinet   23 Mar 2023   
 

Approval is sought for the 
adoption of the public 
transport strategy following 
public consultation in early 
2023. 

Cali Sparks, 
Sustainable 
Transport Senior 
Specialist /  
 

66



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

3 

Yes 

 
Affordable Housing Service 
Policies  
 

Cabinet   23 Mar 2023  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

To approve the next tranche 
(Tranche 3) of policies. 
 
The policies are:  
1. Decant Policy,  
2. Adaptations Policy  
3. Voids Policy 

Sue Edgerley /  
 

Yes 

 
Itchen Valley Country Park - 
Infrastructure improvements 
additional funding proposal  
 

Cabinet   23 Mar 2023   
 

Itchen Valley Country Park – 
Infrastructure improvement 
project additional funding  - 
this is a retrospective 
committee report following 
funding approval by CEX/ 
Leader in Feb 2023 to 
enable contractors to be 
appointed. 

Angela Taylor, 
Senior Corporate 
Project Manager 
/  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   23 Mar 2023   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Jacqui Baxter, 
Lead Asset 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   23 Mar 2023   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

 
 
FOOTNOTES: 
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken. 
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting. 
 
Contact Officer: Laura Johnston –Democratic Services Manager 67



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

4 

Publication Date: 27 February 2023 
 

68



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME 

As of March 2023 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item for Consideration Annual, 
Quarterly or  
Standing 
item 

Staff/Member 
Attendance 

    

To Be Tabled    

    

 Asset Management Strategy Annual  

    

    

7 March 2023    

 Internal Audit Charter 2023/24 Annual Lisa Smy 

 Internal Audit Strategic Plan 
2023/24 

Annual Lisa Smy 

 Repairs and Renewals Annual  

 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/Housing Group 

All Mtgs Members 

 Staffing Report  Annual Shirley Robbins 
Sukhi Aujla 

 

69

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME 

As of March 2023 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item for Consideration Annual, 
Quarterly or  
Standing 
item 

Staff/Member 
Attendance 

    

To Be Tabled    

   
    

    

5 June 2023 Appointments to 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group 

Annual Members 

 Statement of Accounts Annual A Smith 

    

    

 Forward Plan All Mtgs  

 A&R Work Programme All Mtgs  

    

18 July 2023 Audit Planning Report (EY) All Mtgs S King 

 Counter Fraud Report   L Smy 

 Body Worn Video Policy  H Lee 

 Property Portfolio Revenue Update   J Baxter 

 Internal Audit Annual Report & 
Quarterly Monitoring Statement 
(Qtr 4) 

Quarterly L Smy 

 Health and Safety Annual H Smith 

 Annual Governance Report Annual J Cassar 

 External Audit Assessment Results  L Smy 

 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group 

Annual Members 

 Forward Plan All Mtgs  

 A&R Work Programme All Mtgs  

    

    

5 September 
2023 

Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 1) 

Quarterly J Cassar 

 External Audit Progress All Mtgs S King 

 Forward Ways of Working Update  S Aujla 

 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group 

All Mtgs Members 

 Forward Plan All Mtgs  

 A&R Work Programme All Mtgs  

    

31 October 
2023 

Update on Financial Accounts 
Audit 

 EY 

71



 Bad Debt Report  T Andrews 

 Corporate Risk Management 
Annual Report  

 J Cassar 

 Procurement Policy  M Culver 

 Corporate Fees and Charges Annual  

 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (QTR 2) 

Quarterly L Smy 

 Verbal Updates from SRMG All Mtgs Members 

 Forward Plan All Mtgs  

 A&R Work Programme All Mtgs  

    

16 January 
2024 

Statement of Accounts Annual A Smith 

 Bad Debt Report  T Andrews/ M 
Reed 

 Audit Results Report  Annual EY 

 Draft Letter of Management 
Representation 

 EY 

 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Annual H Devereux 

 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group 

All Mtgs Members 

 Forward Plan All Mtgs  

 A&R Work Programme All Mtgs  

    

20 February 
2024 

Repairs and Renewals Report  J Baxter 

 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 3) 

Quarterly L Smy 

 Capital, Investment and Treasury 
Management Strategy 

Annual T Andrews 

 Asset Management Strategy Annual J Baxter 

 Property Portfolio Update Annual J Baxter 

 Verbal Updates from PEG All Mtgs Members 

 Forward Plan All Mtgs  

 A&R Work Programme All Mtgs  

    

5 March 2024    

 Internal Audit Charter Annual L Smy 

 Internal Audit Strategic Plan Annual L Smy 

 Verbal Updates from SRMG All Mtgs Members 

 Staffing Report  Annual S Aujla 

 

72


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Update on Staffing Matters 2022
	6 Repair and Renewal Plan
	A R Appendix. 1 for Repair and Renewal Plan 201920-202324 Update 2023

	7 Internal Audit Charter 2022/23
	INTERNALAUDITCHARTERFOREASTLEIGHBOROUGHCOUNCIL Appendix 1

	8 Internal Audit Strategic Plan 2023/24
	STRATEGICPLAN202324 Appendix 1

	9 Cabinet Forward Plan
	10 A&R Work Programme
	AR Work programme 2023-24


